#### **Appendices**

# Appendix G Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

### **Appendices**

This page intentionally left blank.

October 2024 | Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program
State Clearinghouse No. 2023090064

# CITY OF WILDOMAR PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN EIR

City of Wildomar

#### Prepared for:

#### **City of Wildomar**

Contact: Matthew C. Bassi, Community Development Director 23873 Clinton Keith Road, Suite #110 Wildomar, California 92095 951.677.7751

#### Prepared by:

#### **PlaceWorks**

Contact: Mark Teague, AICP, Managing Principal, Environmental Services

3 MacArthur Place, Suite 1100

Santa Ana, California 92707

714.966.9220

info@placeworks.com

www.placeworks.com



#### **Table of Contents**

Secti	on		Page
1.	INTR	ODUCTION	1
	1.1	PURPOSE OF MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM	1
	1.2	PROJECT CHARACTERISTICS	2
	1.3	ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS	3
2.	MITI	GATION MONITORING PROCESS	5
	2.1	MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM ORGANIZATION	5
	2.2	CITY OF WILDOMAR	5
	2.3	MITIGATION MONITORING TEAM	5
	2.4	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	6
	2.5	ENFORCEMENT	6
3.	MITI	GATION MONITORING REQUIREMENTS	7
	3.1	PREMONITORING MEETING	7
	3.2	CATEGORIZED MITIGATION MEASURES/MATRIX	
	3.3	IN-FIELD MONITORING	7
	3.4	DATABASE MANAGEMENT	
	3.5	COORDINATION WITH CONTRACTORS	7
	3.6	LONG-TERM MONITORING	7
4.	MITI	GATION MONITORING REPORTS	
	4.1	FIELD CHECK REPORT	35
	4.2	IMPLEMENTATION COMPLIANCE REPORT	
	4.3	DISPUTE/ENFORCEMENT REPORT	
5.		IMUNITY INVOLVEMENT	
6.	REP	ORT PREPARATION	
	6.1	LIST OF PREPARERS	39
		List of Tables	
<u>Tabl</u>	e		Page
Table	e 1-1	Buildout Statistical Summary	3
Table	e 3-1	Mitigation Monitoring Requirements	9

#### **Table of Contents**

This page intentionally left blank.

# 1.1 PURPOSE OF MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

The City of Wildomar (City) is the lead agency for the City of Wildomar Proposed General Plan (proposed project) and has developed this Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) as a vehicle for monitoring and ensuring the successful implementation of mitigation measures outlined in the City of Wildomar Proposed General Plan EIR, State Clearinghouse No. 2023090064. As the lead agency, the City is responsible for implementing the MMRP, which has been prepared in conformance with Section 21081.6 of the California Public Resources Code, as follows:

- (a) When making findings required by paragraph (1) of subdivision (a) of Section 21081 or when adopting a mitigated negative declaration pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (c) of Section 21080, the following requirements shall apply:
  - (1) The public agency shall adopt a reporting or monitoring program for the changes made to the project or conditions of project approval, adopted in order to mitigate or avoid significant effects on the environment. The reporting or monitoring program shall be designed to ensure compliance during project implementation. For those changes which have been required or incorporated into the project at the request of a responsible agency or a public agency having jurisdiction by law over natural resources affected by the project, that agency shall, if so requested by the lead or responsible agency, prepare and submit a proposed reporting or monitoring program.
  - (2) The lead agency shall specify the location and custodian of the documents or other material which constitute the record of proceedings upon which its decision is based.

The MMRP consists of mitigation measures that avoid, reduce, and/or fully mitigate potential environmental impacts. The mitigation measures have been identified and recommended through preparation of the EIR and drafted to meet the requirements of Public Resources Code, Section 21081.6.

#### 1.2 PROJECT CHARACTERISTICS

#### 1.2.1 Project Location

The City of Wildomar is in southwestern Riverside County, California, and is bordered by the City of Lake Elsinore to the north and northwest, unincorporated Riverside County to the west, City of Murrieta to the south, and City of Menifee to the east. Interstate and regional access to the City is provided by Interstate 15 (I-15), which runs in a general north-south direction through the City.

#### 1.2.2 Project Description

#### **Project Summary**

When the City incorporated in 2008, it adopted Riverside County's General Plan. The project is an update to the City's General Plan, which will be the first City-specific General Plan for Wildomar. The General Plan is a state-required land use planning document that provides guidance to decision-makers regarding the allocation of resources and the future physical form, location, and character of development in the City. It is the City's official and overarching policy statement regarding the extent and types of development needed to achieve the community's physical, economic, social, and environmental goals. Although the General Plan is composed of individual sections, or "elements," that individually address a specific area of concern, it embodies a comprehensive and integrated planning approach for the jurisdiction.

#### Proposed General Plan and Buildout

The proposed project includes the following elements that address all the required topics in state law, as well as one additional topical of local importance:

- Land Use
- Circulation
- Recreation and Community Services
- Open Space and Conservation
- Noise

- Economic Development
- Climate Action Memorandum
- Housing and Safety Elements (previously adopted in 2021; the Safety Element includes minor revisions as listed in the Final EIR document)

Rather than a separate element, Environmental Justice policies are embedded throughout relevant elements of the Proposed General Plan.

Buildout projections shown in Table 1-1, *Buildout Statistical Summary*, compares the existing conditions with the buildout envisioned under the proposed project. The proposed project would result in a net increase of 8,992 units, 27,999 residents, 2,965,538 square feet of non-residential uses, and 6,274 jobs.

Table 1-1 Buildout Statistical Summary

	Dwelling Units	Population	Non-Residential Square Footage	Employment		
Existing	11,988	37,326	2,992,377	5,841		
Proposed General Plan	20,980	65,325	5,957,915	12,115		
Net Change	8,992	27,999	2,965,538	6,274		
Source: City of Wildomar and PlaceWorks 2023						

#### 1.3 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

### 1.3.1 Impacts Considered Less Than Significant

The EIR identified various thresholds from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines in a number of environmental categories that would not be significantly impacted by the proposed project and therefore did not require mitigation. Impacts to the following were found to be less than significant:

- Aesthetics
- Energy
- Hydrology and Water Quality
- Land Use and Planning

- Population and Housing
- Public Services
- Recreation
- Utilities and Service Systems

# 1.3.2 Potentially Significant Adverse Impacts That Can Be Mitigated, Avoided, or Substantially Lessened

- Geology and Soils
- Hazards and Hazardous Materials
- Mineral Resources

- Tribal Cultural Resources
- Wildfire
- 1.3.3 Significant and Unavoidable Impacts
  - Agriculture and Forestry Resources
  - Air Quality
  - Biological Resources
  - Cultural Resources

- Greenhouse Gas Emissions
- Noise
- Transportation

This page intentionally left blank

### 2. Mitigation Monitoring Process

#### 2.1 MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM ORGANIZATION

Overall MMRP management is the responsibility of the City of Wildomar. The City's technical consultants (CEQA consultant, etc.) may perform related monitoring tasks under the direction of the environmental monitor (i.e., the qualified/professional expert in charge of monitoring and/or implementing mitigation) if they are contracted by the City.

#### 2.2 CITY OF WILDOMAR

As the lead agency, the City is responsible for the review of all monitoring reports, enforcement actions, and document disposition. The City will rely on information provided by individual monitors (e.g., CEQA consultant, etc.) as accurate and up to date, and will field check mitigation measure status, as required.

#### 2.3 MITIGATION MONITORING TEAM

The mitigation monitoring team, consisting of the designated Project Manager (e.g., Community Development Director) and Technical Consultants (CEQA consultant, etc.) are responsible for monitoring implementation and compliance with all adopted mitigation measures and conditions of approval. A major portion of the team's work will entail in-field monitoring and compliance report preparation. Implementation disputes are brought to the Project Manager, and any appeals would go to the City Manager and ultimately the City Council.

#### 2.3.1 Monitoring Team

The following summarizes key positions in the MMRP and their respective functions:

- **Project Manager:** Responsible for coordination of mitigation monitoring team, technical consultants, report preparation, and overall program administration and document/report clearinghouse.
- Construction Contractor: Responsible for coordination of mitigation monitoring team; technical consultants; report preparation; and implementation the monitoring program, including overall program administration, document/report clearinghouse, and first phase of dispute resolution.
- **Technical Consultants:** Responsible for monitoring in respective areas of expertise (CEQA consultant, project engineer, noise analyst/specialist). Report directly to the Project Manager.

### 2.3.2 Recognized Experts

The use of recognized experts on the monitoring team is required to ensure compliance with scientific and engineering mitigation measures. The mitigation monitoring team's recognized experts assess compliance with

#### 2. Mitigation Monitoring Process

required mitigation measures, and recognized experts from responsible agencies consult with the Project Manager regarding disputes.

#### 2.4 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

If the monitoring team determines that a mitigation measure, in the opinion of the monitor, has not been implemented or has not been implemented correctly, the problem will be brought before the Project Manager for resolution. The decision of the Project Manager is final unless appealed to the City Manager. The Project Manager will have the authority to issue stop-work order until the dispute is resolved.

#### 2.5 ENFORCEMENT

Public agencies may enforce conditions of approval through their existing police power, using stop-work orders, fines, infraction citations, revocation of approval/permits, or in some cases, notice of violation for tax purposes.

#### 3.1 PREMONITORING MEETING

A pre-monitoring meeting will be scheduled to review mitigation measures, implementation requirements, schedule conformance, and mitigation monitoring team responsibilities. At such meetings, the monitoring team rules are established, the entire mitigation monitoring program is presented, and any misunderstandings are resolved.

#### 3.2 CATEGORIZED MITIGATION MEASURES/MATRIX

Project-specific mitigation measures have been categorized in matrix format, as shown in Table 3-1, *Mitigation Monitoring Requirements*. The matrix identifies the environmental factor, specific mitigation measures, schedule, and responsible monitor. The mitigation matrix will serve as the basis for scheduling the implementation of, and compliance with, all mitigation measures.

#### 3.3 IN-FIELD MONITORING

Project monitors and technical subconsultants shall exercise caution and professional practices at all times when monitoring implementation of mitigation measures. Protective wear (e.g., hard hat, glasses) shall be worn at all times in construction areas. Injuries shall be immediately reported to the mitigation monitoring team.

#### 3.4 DATABASE MANAGEMENT

All mitigation monitoring reports, letters, and memos shall be prepared utilizing electronic software, such as Microsoft Word, Adobe, etc.

#### 3.5 COORDINATION WITH CONTRACTORS

The construction manager is responsible for coordination of contractors and for contractor completion of required mitigation measures.

#### 3.6 LONG-TERM MONITORING

Long-term monitoring related to several mitigation measures will be required, including review of project plans to ensure compliance with the most recent versions of the California Building Code and California Fire Code. Post-construction fire inspections are conducted on a routine basis by the City of Wildomar Fire Department.

This page intentionally left blank

<b>AGRICI</b>	Mitigation Measure  LTURAL AND FORESTRY RESOURCES	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
AG-1	<ol> <li>Prior to approval of any development permit on land considered prime, of statewide significance, or unique, the City shall require the following:</li> <li>Completion of the California Department of Conservation Land Evaluation &amp; Site Assessment Model. If the model score is 39 points or less, conversion of the land is not significant, and no further mitigation is required. If the model score is between 40 and 79 points, conversion of the land to urban uses may be significant but will depend on the results of the model. A LESA model score of 80 or greater identifies the conversion as significant and will require mitigation.</li> <li>If the LESA model results determine that conversion of the land to urban uses is a significant impact, the development shall be conditioned to provide either an agricultural easement on existing farmland with a similar or greater LESA model score, or the creation of new agricultural land and easement at a 1:1 ratio.</li> </ol>	Future Project Applicants	Prior to Approval of Any Development Permit on Land Considered Prime, of Statewide Significance, or Unique	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	
AIR QUA	ALITY				
AQ-1	Prior to discretionary approval by the City of Wildomar for development projects subject to CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act) review ( <i>i.e.</i> , nonexempt projects), project applicants shall prepare and submit a technical assessment evaluating potential project construction-related air quality impacts to the City of Wildomar Planning Department for review and approval. The evaluation shall be prepared in conformance with the South Coast Air Quality Management District (South Coast AQMD) methodology for assessing air quality impacts.  Specifically, project applicants of discretionary projects within 1,000 feet of sensitive land uses ( <i>e.g.</i> , residences, schools, day care facilities, and nursing homes, etc.), as measured from the property line of the project site, that utilize off-road equipment of 50 horsepower or more, and that occur for more than 2 months of active construction ( <i>i.e.</i> , exclusive of interior renovations) shall prepare a construction health risk assessment (HRA) in accordance with policies and procedures of the South Coast AQMD. If the construction HRA shows that the incremental cancer risk exceeds 10 in a million, the appropriate noncancer hazard index exceeds 1.0, or the thresholds as determined by the South Coast AQMD, then the project applicant shall identify and demonstrate measures, such as those listed below, that can reduce potential cancer and noncancer risks to an acceptable level.	Future Project Applicants	Prior to Discretionary Approval	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	

	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
	If construction-related criteria air pollutants are determined to have the potential to exceed the South Coast AQMD–adopted thresholds of significance, the City of Wildomar Building & Safety department shall require feasible mitigation measures to reduce air quality emissions. Potential measures shall be incorporated as conditions of approval for a project and may include, but are not limited to the following:				
	<ul> <li>Require fugitive dust control measures that exceed South Coast Air Quality Management District's Rule 403, such as:         <ul> <li>Requiring use of nontoxic soil stabilizers to reduce wind erosion.</li> <li>Applying water every four hours to active soil disturbing activities.</li> <li>Tarping and/or maintaining a minimum of 24 inches of freeboard on trucks hauling dirt, sand, soil, or other loose materials.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Using construction equipment rated by the United States Environmental Protection Agency as having Tier 4 interim or higher exhaust emission limits.</li> <li>Ensuring construction equipment is properly serviced and maintained to the manufacturer's standards.</li> <li>Limiting nonessential idling of construction equipment to no more than five consecutive minutes.</li> <li>Using Super-Compliant VOC paints for coating of architectural surfaces whenever possible. A list of Super-Compliant architectural coating manufactures can be found on the South Coast Air Quality Management District's website at: https://www.aqmd.gov/home/rules-compliance/compliance/vocs/architectural-coatings/super-compliant-coatings.</li> <li>These identified measures shall be incorporated into all appropriate construction documents (e.g., construction management plans) submitted to the City and shall be verified by the City's Planning Department.</li> </ul>				
AQ-2	Prior to discretionary approval by the City of Wildomar for development projects subject to CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act) review ( <i>i.e.</i> , nonexempt projects), project applicants shall prepare and submit a technical assessment evaluating potential project operation-phase-related air quality impacts to the City of Wildomar Planning Department for review and approval. The evaluation shall be prepared in conformance with South Coast Air Quality Management District (South Coast AQMD) methodology in assessing air quality impacts. If operation-related air pollutants are determined to have the potential to exceed the South Coast AQMD—	Future Project Applicants	During Plan Check and Prior to Discretionary Approval	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	

	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
	adopted thresholds of significance, the City of Wildomar Planning Department shall require that applicants for new development projects incorporate mitigation measures to reduce air pollutant emissions during operational activities. The identified measures shall be included as part of the conditions of approval.	·	, and the second	,	
	Possible mitigation measures to reduce long-term emissions could include, but are not limited to the following:				
	<ul> <li>For site-specific development that requires refrigerated vehicles, the construction documents shall demonstrate an adequate number of electrical service connections at loading docks for plug-in of the anticipated number of refrigerated trailers to reduce idling time and emissions.</li> <li>Applicants for manufacturing and light industrial uses shall consider energy storage and combined heat and power in appropriate applications to optimize renewable energy generation systems and avoid peak energy use.</li> <li>Site-specific developments with truck delivery and loading areas and truck parking spaces shall include signage as a reminder to limit idling of vehicles while parked for loading/unloading in accordance with California Air Resources Board Rule 2845 (13 CCR Chapter 10 § 2485).</li> <li>Provide bicycle parking facilities per the Nonresidential Voluntary Measures and Residential Voluntary Measures of CALGreen.</li> <li>Provide facilities to support electric charging infrastructure per the Nonresidential Voluntary Measures and Residential Voluntary Measures of CALGreen.</li> <li>Applicant-provided appliances shall be Energy Star-certified appliances or appliances of equivalent energy efficiency (e.g., dishwashers, refrigerators, clothes washers, and dryers). Installation of Energy Star-certified or equivalent appliances shall be verified by the City during plan check.</li> </ul>				
AQ-3	Industrial and Warehouse Development Health Risk Assessments. Prior to discretionary approval by the City of Wildomar, project applicants for new industrial or warehousing development projects that 1) have the potential to generate 100 or more diesel truck trips per day or have 40 or more trucks with operating diesel-powered transport refrigeration units, and 2) are within 1,000 feet of a sensitive land use (e.g., residential, schools, hospitals, nursing homes), as measured from the property line of the project to the property line of the nearest sensitive use, shall submit an operational health risk assessment (HRA) to the City of Wildomar Planning Department for review and approval. The HRA shall be prepared in accordance with policies and procedures	Future Project Applicants	Prior to Discretionary Approval for Industrial and Warehouse Developments	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	

	Mitigation Measure  of the state Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment and the South Coast AQMD. If the HRA shows that the incremental cancer risk and/or noncancer hazard index exceeds the respective threshold, as established by the South Coast AQMD at the time a project is considered, the project applicant will be required to identify best available control technologies for toxics (T BACTs) and appropriate enforcement mechanisms and demonstrate that they are capable of reducing potential cancer and noncancer risks to an acceptable level. T-BACTs may include but are not limited to restricting idling on-site or electrifying warehousing docks to reduce diesel particulate matter, or requiring use of newer equipment and/or vehicles. T-BACTs identified in the HRA shall be identified as mitigation measures in the environmental document and/or incorporated into the site plan.	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
BIOLOGI	CAL RESOURCES				
BIO-1	If an action may adversely impact biological resources, a qualified biologist or their trained designee shall conduct mandatory worker environmental awareness training for all parties involved with implementation of the action (e.g., contractors and work crews), prior to the start of construction, to aid the parties in recognizing special-status species and other sensitive biological resources that may occur within the area of the proposed action. The training shall include identification of the special-status species with potential to occur and their habitats, a description of the regulatory status of sensitive resources, and review of the impact limits, location of environmentally sensitive areas, and measures required to reduce impacts to avoided onsite and offsite biological resources.	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Biologist	Prior to the Start of Construction	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	
BIO-2	If an action has potential to inadvertently impact avoided onsite or offsite biological resources, appropriate measures shall be developed and implemented prior to the start of ground disturbing activities to ensure all impacts occur only in the area of the proposed action. Appropriate measures may include control of sediment, erosion, and hazardous materials; demarcation of action area prior to implementation and maintenance of demarcation through the duration of implementation; and measures to ensure all actions that have potential to impact biological resources stay within the demarcated limits.	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Biologist	Prior to the Start of Ground-Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	

	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
BIO-3	If an action has potential to adversely impact amphibian species ( <i>e.g.</i> , may impact potential habitat for amphibians or may otherwise result in disturbance to amphibians from noise, light, or some other potentially disturbing activity), prior to the start of ground-disturbing activities, determine if a project falls within the mapped survey area for amphibian species (arroyo toad, California red-legged frog, and mountain yellow-legged frog [ <i>Rana muscosa</i> ]) and if suitable habitat is present, then focused surveys shall be required prior to ground-disturbing activities and the results shall be included in the habitat assessment. Focused surveys shall be conducted in accordance with accepted survey protocols for the arroyo toad, California red-legged frog, and mountain yellow-legged frog (USFWS Survey Protocol for the Arroyo Toad [1999], USFWS Revised Guidance on Site Assessments and Field Surveys for the California Red-Legged Frog [2005], and MSHCP Mountain Yellow-Legged Frog Survey Protocol). If a project is not located within an amphibian survey area, a statement to this effect shall be included in the and the results shall be included in the habitat assessment and no further action is required. If it is determined in the habitat assessment prepared by a qualified biologist that there is no potential habitat for amphibian species to occur within a project site, a conclusion that no suitable habitat is present on the site supported with solid evidence and no other measures are recommended shall be provided to the project applicant and the City of Wildomar Community Development Department. If conditions or circumstances change after the environmental analysis is conducted and prior to ground-disturbing activities associated with the action, then the validity of the results shall be confirmed, or an updated environmental analysis shall be conducted prior to impacting a project site.	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Biologist	Prior to the Start of Ground-Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	
	If amphibian species are identified within a project site and a project cannot avoid (permanent or temporary) at least 90 percent of the occupied portion of the property that contributes to the long-term conservation value of the species, a DBESP shall be required. A justification by a qualified biologist regarding how the 90 percent and 10 percent determinations were made is required and shall be included in the DBESP. Refer to Figure 5.4-8, Flow Chart to Guide Special-Status Wildlife (Amphibians) Recommendations.				

	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
BIO-4	If an action has potential to adversely impact the burrowing owl ( <i>Athene cunicularia</i> ) ( <i>e.g.</i> , may impact potential habitat or may otherwise result in disturbance to burrowing owls from noise, light, or some other potentially disturbing activity), prior to the start of ground-disturbing activities, determine if a project falls within the mapped (designated) survey area for the burrowing owl and if suitable habitat is present, then focused surveys shall be required prior to ground-disturbing activities and the results shall be included in the habitat assessment. Focused surveys shall be conducted in accordance with the MSHCP Burrowing Owl Survey Instructions and during the breeding season (survey window is March 1-August 31). If a project is not located within the burrowing owl survey area, include a statement to this effect and no further action is required. If it is determined in the habitat assessment prepared by a qualified biologist that there is no potential habitat for burrowing owls to occur within a project site, a conclusion that no suitable habitat is present on the site supported with solid evidence and no other measures are recommended shall be provided to the project applicant and the City of Wildomar Community Development Department. If conditions or circumstances change after the environmental analysis is conducted and prior to ground-disturbing activities associated with the action, then the validity of the results shall be confirmed, or an updated environmental analysis shall be conducted prior to impacting a project site.	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Biologist	Prior to the Start of Ground-Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	
	If burrowing owls are not found during focused surveys, documentation prepared by a qualified biologist shall include a written commitment to conduct pre-construction surveys for the burrowing owl in areas of suitable habitat no more than 30 days prior to the initiation of ground disturbance ( <i>e.g.</i> , vegetation clearing, clearing and grubbing, tree removal, site watering, equipment staging, grading, etc.) to ensure that no owls have colonized the site in the days or weeks preceding the ground-disturbing activities. If burrowing owls have colonized a project site prior to the initiation of ground-disturbing activities, the project proponent shall immediately inform the Regional Conservation Authority (RCA) and the Wildlife Agencies, such as the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, and will need to coordinate further with RCA and the Wildlife Agencies, including the possibility of preparing and getting approval of a Burrowing Owl Protection and Relocation Plan, prior to initiating ground disturbance. If ground-disturbing activities occur, but the site is left undisturbed for more than 30 days, a pre-construction survey will be required again to ensure				

	Mitigation Measure  burrowing owl has not colonized the site since it was last disturbed. If the burrowing owl is found, the same coordination described above shall be necessary.	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
	If burrowing owls are identified within a project site and a project cannot avoid (permanent or temporary) at least 90 percent of the occupied portion of the property that contributes to the long-term conservation value of the species, a DBESP is required and a Burrowing Owl Protection and Relocation Plan shall be prepared, approved and implemented. A justification by a qualified biologist regarding how the 90 percent and 10 percent determinations were made is required and shall be included in the DBESP. Refer to Figure 5.4-9, <i>Flow Chart to Guide Burrowing Owl Recommendations</i> .				
BIO-5	If an action has potential to adversely impact mammal species (e.g., may impact potential habitat for mammals or may otherwise result in disturbance to mammals from noise, light, or some other potentially disturbing activity), prior to the start of ground-disturbing activities, determine if a project falls within the mapped survey area for mammal species (Aguanga kangaroo rat [Dipodomys merriami collinus], Los Angeles pocket mouse [Perognathus longimembris brevinasus], and San Bernardino kangaroo rat) and if suitable habitat is present, then focused surveys shall be required prior to ground-disturbing activities and the results shall be included in the habitat assessment. Focused surveys shall be conducted in accordance with accepted survey protocols for these species (MSHCP Biological Monitoring Program – Stephens' Kangaroo Rat [2006] and Survey Protocol for Los Angeles Pocket Mouse). If a project is not located within a mammal survey area, include a statement to this effect and no further action is required. If it is determined in the habitat assessment prepared by a qualified biologist that there is no potential habitat for mammal species to occur within a project site, a conclusion that no suitable habitat is present on a site supported with solid evidence and no other measures are recommended shall be provided to the project applicant and the City of Wildomar Community Development Department. If conditions or circumstances change after the environmental analysis is conducted and prior to ground-disturbing activities associated with the action, then the validity of the results shall be confirmed, or an updated environmental analysis shall be conducted prior to impacting a project site.	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Biologist	Prior to the Start of Ground-Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	

	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
	If mammal species are identified within a project site and a project cannot avoid (permanent or temporary) at least 90 percent of the occupied portion of the property that contributes to the long-term conservation value of the species, a DBESP is required. A justification by a qualified biologist regarding how the 90 percent and 10 percent determinations were made is required and shall be included in the DBESP.				
BIO-6	If an action has potential to adversely impact vernal pools or other suitable fairy shrimp habitats, then focused surveys shall be required prior to ground-disturbing activities and the results shall be included in the habitat assessment. Focused surveys shall be conducted pursuant to the USFWS Survey Guidelines for the Listed Large Branchiopods, which includes six listed fairy shrimp species, including those species covered under the MSHCP Section 6.1.2. Two seasons of fairy shrimp surveys are required. If it is determined in the habitat assessment prepared by a qualified biologist that there is no potential habitat for vernal pools or fairy shrimp species to occur within a project site, a conclusion that no suitable habitat is present on the site supported with solid evidence and no other measures are recommended shall be provided to the project applicant and the City of Wildomar Community Development Department. If conditions or circumstances change after the environmental analysis is conducted and prior ground-disturbing activities associated with the action, then the validity of the results shall be confirmed, or an updated environmental analysis shall be conducted prior to impacting a project site.  If fairy shrimp species are identified within a project site and a project cannot avoid (permanent or temporary) at least 90 percent of the occupied portion of the property that contributes to the long-term conservation value of the species, a DBESP is	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Biologist	Prior to the Start of Ground-Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	
	required. A justification by a qualified biologist regarding how the 90 percent and 10 percent determinations were made is required and shall be included in the DBESP. Refer to Figure 5.4-10, Flow Chart to Guide Vernal Pools and Fairy Shrimp Recommendations.				
BIO-7	If an action has potential to adversely impact riparian bird species (least Bell's vireo, southwestern willow flycatcher, or yellow-billed cuckoo [Coccyzus americanus]), and if suitable habitat (nesting and/or foraging) is present, then protocol-level focused surveys shall be required. Focused surveys shall be conducted in accordance with accepted USFWS survey protocols for the least Bell's vireo, southwestern willow flycatcher, and yellow-billed cuckoo (Least Bell's Vireo Survey Guidelines [2001], A	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Biologist	Prior to the Start of Ground-Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	

	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
	Natural History Summary and Survey Protocol for the Southwestern Willow Flycatcher [2010], and A Natural History Summary and Survey Protocol for the Western Distinct Population Segment of the Yellow-Billed Cuckoo [2016]). If it is determined in the habitat assessment prepared by a qualified biologist that there is no potential habitat for riparian bird species to occur within a project site, a conclusion that no suitable habitat is present on the site supported with solid evidence and no other measures are recommended shall be provided to the project applicant and City of Wildomar Community Development Department. If conditions or circumstances change after the environmental analysis is conducted and prior to ground-disturbing activities associated with the action, then the validity of the results shall be confirmed, or an updated environmental analysis shall be conducted prior to impacting a project site.				
	If least Bell's vireo, southwestern willow flycatcher, or yellow-billed cuckoo are identified within a project site and a project cannot demonstrate 90 percent avoidance of the occupied portion of the property that contributes to the long-term conservation value of the species, a DBESP is required. This includes 100 meters of undeveloped landscape on a property adjacent to the habitat conserved. A justification by a qualified biologist regarding how the 90 percent and 10 percent determinations were made is required and shall be included in the DBESP. Refer to Figure 5.4-11, <i>Flow Chart to Guide Riparian Bird Species Recommendations</i> .				
BIO-8	If an action has the potential to impact coastal California gnatcatcher, a habitat assessment shall be prepared by a qualified biologist to determine if suitable habitat is present in the area of the proposed action. If suitable habitat is present ( <i>i.e.</i> , coastal sage scrub, Riversidean sage scrub) and an action has potential to adversely impact the coastal California gnatcatcher, avoid clearing, grubbing, grading, and associated construction actions in gnatcatcher occupied habitat within the Criteria Cells and/or PQP lands between March 1 and August 15. If this species is detected and a project may be potentially occupied and the habitat cannot be avoided, this habitat cannot be removed from March 1 to August 15 without conducting focused protocol-level surveys to prove absence. If it is determined in the habitat assessment prepared by a qualified biologist that there is no potential habitat for coastal California gnatcatcher to occur within a project site, a conclusion that no suitable habitat is present on the site supported with solid evidence and no other measures are recommended shall be provided to the project applicant and the City of Wildomar Community Development	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Biologist	Prior to the Start of Ground-Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	

	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
	Department. Refer to Figure 5.4-12, Flow Chart to Coastal Gnatcatcher Recommendations.				
BIO-9	If an action that may adversely impact birds or nests ( <i>e.g.</i> , ground or vegetation disturbance, noise near nesting habitat) and is expected is to occur during the nesting season (generally February 1 through September 15), a pre-construction nesting-bird survey shall be conducted for all suitable nesting habitat within three days prior to ground-disturbing activities associated with the action. The survey shall be conducted by a qualified biologist within a project site plus a buffer for the project as determined by the qualified biologist (based on the action and what bird species may be impacted). If no nesting birds are observed during the survey, site preparation and construction activities may begin. If nesting birds (including nesting raptors) are found to be present, avoidance or minimization measures shall be undertaken to avoid potential project-related impacts. Measures may include seasonal work restrictions or establishment of a non-disturbance buffer around each active nest until nesting has been completed as determined through periodic nest monitoring by the biologist. The size of the non-disturbance buffer shall be determined by the project biologist. Once nesting is deemed complete by the project biologist, work may resume within the buffer. Refer to Figure 5.4-13, <i>Flow Chart to Guide Special-Status Wildlife (Including Protected Birds/Nests) Recommendations</i> .	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Biologist	Three Days Prior to the Start of Ground-Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	
BIO-10	If an action may impact sensitive natural vegetation communities, an environmental analysis to determine if there is potential for sensitive natural communities or other protected vegetation communities shall be conducted by a qualified biologist. If it is determined that in the habitat assessment prepared by a qualified biologist that there are no sensitive natural communities or other protected vegetation communities within a project site, no other measures are recommended. If sensitive natural communities (riparian habitat, riverine areas, vernal pools) are identified within the impact area (permanent and temporary, direct and indirect), appropriate measures to avoid, minimize, or mitigate for impacts to sensitive natural communities shall be implemented. If riparian/riverine resources and vernal pools are proposed for avoidance, the habitat assessment shall include a commitment to place a conservation easement or deed restriction over the area in order to demonstrate that the area will be protected in perpetuity. If a project cannot avoid riparian/riverine habitat and/or vernal pools in perpetuity (both permanent and temporarily), a DBESP	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Biologist	Prior to the Start of Ground-Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department and applicable Wildlife Agencies	

	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
	shall be required that would propose mitigation that demonstrates equivalent or superior function and value, and shall be submitted to the City of Wildomar Community Development Department and applicable Wildlife Agencies. Refer to Figure 5.4-15, Flow Chart to Guide Riparian Habitat/Riverine Areas and Vernal Pools.				
BIO-11	If an action will impact riparian habitat as determined by a qualified biologist, a Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement, pursuant to Section 1602 of the California Department of Fish and Game Code shall be obtained prior to the start of ground disturbing activities. Minimization measures will be developed during consultation with CDFW as part of the Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement process to ensure protections for affected fish and wildlife resources.	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Biologist	Prior to the Start of Ground-Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department and applicable Wildlife Agencies	
BIO-12	If an action has the potential to impact aquatic resources, an environmental analysis ( <i>i.e.</i> , a preliminary aquatic resources delineation) shall be conducted to determine if potentially regulated aquatic resources occur within a project site. A qualified wetland delineator shall conduct the environmental analysis and it shall include review of the best available hydrological information, a reconnaissance-level site visit, and an evaluation of aquatic resources to determine the potential for regulated aquatic resources to occur within a project site. If it is determined in the habitat assessment prepared by a qualified biologist that there are no potentially regulated aquatic resources, no other measures are recommended and the habitat assessment shall be submitted to the City of Wildomar Community Development Department and applicable Wildlife Agencies. If conditions or circumstances change after the environmental analysis is conducted and prior to ground-disturbing activities associated with the action, the validity of the results shall be confirmed or an updated environmental analysis shall be conducted prior to impacting a project site. Refer to Figure 5.4-16, <i>Flow Chart to Guide Aquatic Resources Recommendations</i> .	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Wetland Delineator	Prior to the Start of Ground-Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department and applicable Wildlife Agencies	
BIO-13	If an action may impact potentially regulated aquatic resources, an aquatic resources delineation shall be conducted by a qualified biologist for a project consistent with the methods detailed within the Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual (Environmental Laboratory 1987), Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: Arid West Region (USACE 2008), and State Wetlands Definitions and Procedures for Discharges of Dredged and Fill Material to Waters of the State, and local policies by the CDFW regarding their jurisdiction, following the	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Biologist	Prior to the Start of Ground Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department and USACE	

	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
	definitions contained within the California Fish and Game Code pertaining to regulated resources (lakes, streams, and associated hydrophytic vegetation). If it is determined by a qualified biologist that potentially regulated aquatic resources are absent from a project site or will not be impacted by the action, no other measures are recommended and the habitat assessment shall be submitted to the City of Wildomar Community Development Department and USACE. If it is determined that potentially regulated aquatic resources may be impacted by the action, the delineation shall be submitted to the USACE, and a Preliminary Jurisdictional Determination or Approved Jurisdictional Determination shall be obtained. The project applicant shall obtain all required permits from the USACE and applicable agencies prior to the start of construction activities. Refer to Figure 5.4-16, Flow Chart to Guide Aquatic Resources Recommendations.				
BIO-14	If an action requiring a discretionary approval is within or adjacent to a Core Area, Linkage, or wildlife movement corridor identified in the Western Riverside Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP) or a project-specific biological analysis, a qualified biologist shall, prior to any ground disturbance, prepare and submit to the City a wildlife movement evaluation for the proposed project to assess whether the project has the potential to substantially interfere with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites. The City shall review the evaluation and in doing so may confer with any/all applicable resource agencies (e.g. CDFW, USFWS, NMFS) to assess the extent of any such impacts and impose conditions requiring the implementation of appropriate and feasible measures such as avoidance, design alteration, overcrossings, or other measures to reduce any such potentially significant impacts to the greatest extent feasible.	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Biologist	Prior to the Start of Ground Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department and Appropriate Regulatory Agency	
CULTURA CUL-1	AL RESOURCES  Site-Specific Cultural Resources Study and Evaluation of Resources. For projects that are on land that has not previously been developed, or will involve construction on areas where no previous ground disturbance or excavation has occurred, or for structures that are 50 years of age, a site-specific cultural resources study shall be completed prior to project approval. This site-specific cultural resources study shall include, but not be limited to a, records search with the California Historical Resource	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Cultural Resources Specialist	Prior to the Start of Ground-Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	

	Mitigation Measure  Information System, review of historical documents, a Sacred Lands File search with the NAHC, and a field survey/site effort. The findings of the study shall be submitted as a report that follows the California Office of Historic Preservation's recommended content and format. The report will provide the historic context, methods, results, and recommendations for appropriate findings.	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
CUL-2	Human Remains. If potential human remains are encountered, State Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 states that no further disturbance shall occur until the Riverside County Coroner has made the necessary findings as to origin. Further, pursuant to Public Resource Code Section 5097.98(b) remains shall be left in place and free from disturbance until a final decision as to the <b>treatment</b> and disposition has been made. If the Riverside County Coroner determines the remains to be Native American, the Native American Heritage Commission shall be contacted within the period specified by law (24 hours). Subsequently, the Native American Heritage Commission shall identify the "most likely descendant" (MLD). The MLD shall then make recommendations and engage in consultation concerning the treatment of the remains as provided in Public Resources Code Section 5097.98. No photographs are to be taken of any human remains and/or cremations except by the coroner, with written approval by the consulting tribe(s).	Future Project Applicants and Professional Archaeologist	During Ground- Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	
GEOLOG	Y AND SOILS	•			
GEO-1	The project applicant/developer shall incorporate the recommendations of a project's geotechnical report into project plans related to a proposed project. A project's building plans shall demonstrate that they incorporate all applicable recommendations of the geotechnical report and comply with all applicable requirements of the latest adopted version of the California Building Code. The project applicant/developer shall incorporate the recommendations of a project's geotechnical report into project plans related to a proposed project. A project's building plans shall demonstrate that they incorporate all applicable recommendations of the geotechnical report and comply with all applicable requirements of the latest adopted version of the California Building Code.	Future Project Applicants and Licensed Professional Engineer	During Building Plan Check, Prior to Any Ground-Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Building and Safety Department and Community Development Department	
GEO-2	Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the project applicant shall retain a Certified Paleontologist to assess the potential for presence of paleontological resources and the potential for project construction to affect such resources if present. If it is	Future Project Applicants and Certified Paleontologist	Prior to Issuance of a Grading Permit	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	

Table 3	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
	determined, to the satisfaction of the City, that there is low potential for discovery or disturbance of paleontological resources, no further action shall be required.				
	If potential for discovery is deemed moderate to high, the project applicant shall retain a Certified Paleontologist to monitor all initial ground-disturbing activities in native soils or sediments. If the paleontologist, upon observing initial earthwork, determines there is low potential for discovery, no further action shall be required, and the paleontologist shall submit a memo to the City confirming findings of low potential.				
	Should any paleontological resources ( <i>i.e.</i> , fossils) be uncovered during project construction activities, all work within a 100-foot radius of the discovery site shall be halted or diverted to other areas on the site and the City shall be immediately notified. A Certified Paleontologist shall evaluate the finds and recommend appropriate next steps to ensure that the resource is not substantially adversely impacted, including but not limited to avoidance, preservation in place, excavation, documentation, curation, data recovery, or other appropriate measures.				
	Further ground disturbance shall not resume within a 100-foot radius of the discovery site until an agreement has been reached between the project applicant, a Certified Paleontologist, and the City as to the appropriate preservation or mitigation measures to ensure that the resource is not substantially adversely impacted.				
	Salvage and collection of significant fossils shall be done in accordance with the Society of Vertebrate Paleontology guidelines. Any paleontological resources salvaged shall be provided for curation at a local curation facility, or any other local museum or repository, such as the Western Science Center or World Museum of Natural History, willing and able to accept and house the resource to preserve for future scientific study.				
GREENH	OUSE GAS EMISSIONS				
GHG-1	The City of Wildomar shall participate in implementation and future updates of the Subregional Climate Action Plan (CAP) led by the Western Riverside Council of Government (WRCOG) with a focus on strategies that provide community-wide greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reductions in the City's planning area. The City shall conduct regular monitoring and reporting of community-wide GHG emissions to ensure progress toward reducing community-wide GHGs and work with WRCOG and	City of Wildomar Public Works and Engineering Department and Community Development Department	During Future Updates of the Subregional CAP	City of Wildomar Public Works and Engineering Department and Community Development Department	

Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
partners to update the Subregional CAP on a regulator basis to ensure long-term reduction in GHG emissions.	·	v	,	
The City shall prepare a list of quantified GHG reduction measures or best management practices for use by new development subject to the City's discretionary review process, that are consistent with the Subregional CAP. The City shall require that Applicants for new development that would result in significant GHG emissions impacts, be required to implement the GHG reduction measures or best management practices identified on the list prepared by the City, if determined to be applicable for the project.				
Examples of mitigation measures that may be considered, include the following:				
<ul> <li>Measures that encourage transit use, carpooling, bike-share and car-share programs, active transportation, and parking strategies, including, but not limited to the following:         <ul> <li>Promote transit-active transportation coordinated strategies;</li> <li>Increase bicycle carrying capacity on transit and rail vehicles;</li> <li>Improve or increase access to transit;</li> <li>Increase access to common goods and services, such as groceries, schools, and day care;</li> <li>Incorporate the neighborhood electric vehicle network;</li> <li>Orient the project toward transit, bicycle and pedestrian facilities;</li> <li>Improve pedestrian or bicycle networks, or transit service;</li> <li>Provide traffic calming measures;</li> <li>Limit or eliminate park supply;</li> <li>Unbundle parking costs;</li> <li>Provide parking cash-out programs;</li> <li>Implement or provide access to commute reduction program;</li> </ul> </li> <li>Require at least five percent of all vehicle parking spaces include electric vehicle charging stations;</li> <li>Adopting employer trip reduction measures to reduce employee trips such as</li> </ul>				
vanpool and carpool programs, providing end-of-trip facilities, and telecommuting programs including but not limited to measures that:  Provide car-sharing, bike sharing, and ride-sharing programs;				

	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
WAZARD.	<ul> <li>Provide transit passes;</li> <li>Shift single occupancy vehicle trips to carpooling or vanpooling, for example providing ride-matching services;</li> <li>Provide incentives or subsidies that increase that use of modes other than single occupancy vehicle;</li> <li>Provide on-site amenities at places of work, such as priority parking for carpools and vanpools, secure bike parking, and showers and locker rooms;</li> <li>Provide employee transportation coordinators at employment sites; and</li> <li>Provide a guaranteed ride home service to users of non-auto modes.</li> <li>Provide maximum future coverage of solar panels and installing the maximum solar power generation capacity feasible;</li> <li>Oversizing electrical rooms by 25 percent or providing a secondary electrical room to accommodate future expansion of electric vehicle charging capability;</li> <li>Running conduit to designated locations for future electric truck charging stations.</li> </ul>				
HAZ-1	S AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS  Prior to the issuance of building permits for all projects, the project applicant/developer shall demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City Building Official and the Riverside County Fire Chief, compliance with the 2022 California Building Code (or the most recent edition) (Part 2 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations) and the 2022 California Fire Code (or the most recent edition) (Part 9 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations), including those regulations pertaining to materials and construction methods intended to mitigate wildfire exposure as described in the 2022 California Building Code and California Residential Code (or most recent edition); specifically California Building Code Chapter 7A; California Residential Code Section R327; California Residential Code Section R337; California Referenced Standards Code Chapter 12 7A; and California Fire Code	City Building Official and the Riverside County Fire Chief	Prior to the Issuance of Building Permits	City of Wildomar Building Department and Riverside County Fire Department	
HAZ-2	Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for all projects, the applicant shall demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the City Building Official and the County Fire Chief, compliance with the vegetation management requirements prescribed in California Fire Code Section 4906 and California Government Code Section 51182.	City Building Official and the County Fire Chief	Prior to the Issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy	City of Wildomar Building Department and Riverside County Fire Department	

MINERA	Mitigation Measure  L RESOURCES	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
MIN-1	Prior to blasting non-rippable bedrock within 100 feet of the federal lode, outcrops shall be inspected for pegmatite dikes or other geological features considered favorable for gemstones or rare earth elements by an experienced igneous petrologist with a master's degree and/or Ph.D. in Geology. If geological units containing museum quality gemstones or anomalously high concentrations of rare earth elements are found, representative specimens shall be documented and provided to an accredited repository such as the University of California, Riverside Earth and Planetary Sciences Museum, the Western Science Center in Riverside County, or any other local museum or repository willing and able to accept and house the resources to preserve for future scientific study.	Future Project Applicants and Experienced Igneous Petrologist	Prior to Blasting Non- Rippable Bedrock Within 100 Feet of the Federal Lode	City of Wildomar Public Works and Engineering Department and Community Development Department	
NOISE					
N-1	Construction Noise Measures. Construction contractors shall implement the following measures for construction activities conducted in the City of Wildomar. Construction plans submitted to the City shall identify these measures on demolition, grading, and construction plans. The City of Wildomar shall verify that grading, demolition, and/or construction plans submitted to the City include these notations prior to issuance of demolition, grading, and/or building permits.	Future Project Applicants and Construction Contractor	Prior to Issuance of Demolition, Grading, and/or Building Permits and During Construction Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department and Building and Safety Department	
	<ul> <li>During the entire active construction period, equipment and trucks used for project construction shall use the best-available noise control techniques (e.g., improved mufflers, equipment redesign, use of intake silencers, ducts, engine enclosures, and acoustically attenuating shields or shrouds), wherever feasible to maintain construction noise levels at or below the performance standard of 80 dBA Leq. Proper mufflers and/or silencers can achieve a 4 to 5 dBA reduction, while engine enclosers can achieve 8 to 10 dBA reduction</li> <li>Impact tools (e.g., jack hammers and hoe rams) shall be hydraulically or electrically powered wherever possible. Where the use of pneumatic tools is unavoidable, an exhaust muffler on the compressed air exhaust shall be used along with external noise jackets on the tools to maintain construction noise levels at or below the performance standard of 80 dBA Leq. Pneumatic tools typically measure at a noise level of 6 to 8 dBA lower than impact tools.</li> </ul>				

Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
<ul> <li>Stationary equipment, such as generators and air compressors, shall be located as far as feasible from nearby noise-sensitive uses.</li> </ul>				
<ul> <li>Stockpiling shall be located as far as feasible from nearby noise-sensitive receptors.</li> </ul>				
<ul> <li>Construction traffic shall be limited, to the extent feasible, to approved haul routes established by the City Planning and Building Agency.</li> </ul>				
<ul> <li>At least 10 days prior to the start of construction activities, a sign shall be posted</li> </ul>				
at the entrance(s) to the job site, clearly visible to the public, that includes permitted construction days and hours, as well as the telephone numbers of the				
City's and contractor's authorized representatives that are assigned to respond in				
the event of a noise or vibration complaint. If the authorized contractor's				
representative receives a complaint, he/she shall investigate, take appropriate corrective action, and report the action to the City.				
<ul> <li>As noted in 13 CCR 2480 &amp; 2485 under CARB, any law enforcement department,</li> </ul>				
including air districts and CARB, can fine a 10,000 pound or greater truck owner				
and driver up to \$1000 per day for illegal idling. Signs shall be posted at the job				
site entrance(s), within the on-site construction zones, and along queueing lanes				
(if any) to reinforce the prohibition of unnecessary engine idling. All other				
equipment shall be turned off if not in use for more than 5 minutes.				
<ul> <li>During the entire active construction period and to the extent feasible, the use of</li> </ul>				
noise-producing signals, including horns, whistles, alarms, and bells, shall be for				
safety warning purposes only. The construction manager shall use smart back-up				
alarms, which automatically adjust the alarm level based on the background noise				
level or switch off back-up alarms and replace with human spotters in compliance with all safety requirements and laws.				
<ul> <li>If construction is anticipated for prolonged periods, as required by the Community</li> </ul>				
Development Director, erect temporary noise barriers (at least as high as the				
exhaust of equipment and breaking line-of-sight between noise sources and				
sensitive receptors), as necessary and feasible, to maintain construction noise				
levels at or below the performance standard of 80 dBA Leq. Barriers shall be				
constructed with a solid material that has a density of at least 4 pounds per square				
foot with no gaps from the ground to the top of the barrier.				

	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
N-2	Vibration Analysis. Prior to issuance of a building permit for a project requiring pile driving during construction within 135 feet of fragile structures, such as historical resources, within 100 feet of nonengineered timber and masonry buildings ( <i>e.g.</i> , most residential buildings), or within 75 feet of engineered concrete and masonry (no plaster); or a vibratory roller within 25 feet of any structure, the project applicant shall prepare a noise and vibration analysis to assess and mitigate potential noise and vibration impacts related to these activities. This vibration analysis shall be conducted by a qualified and experienced acoustical consultant or engineer. The vibration levels shall not exceed Federal Transit Administration (FTA) architectural damage thresholds ( <i>e.g.</i> , 0.12 inches per second [in/sec] peak particle velocity [PPV] for fragile or historical resources, 0.2 in/sec PPV for nonengineered timber and masonry buildings, and 0.3 in/sec PPV for engineered concrete and masonry). If vibration levels would exceed these thresholds, alternative methods shall be used, such as drilling piles instead of pile driving and static rollers instead of vibratory rollers. If necessary, construction vibration monitoring shall be conducted to ensure vibration thresholds are not exceeded.	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Acoustical Consultant	Prior to Issuance of a Building Permit	City of Wildomar Community and Development Department and Building and Safety Department	
N-3	Vibration Analysis. Prior to discretionary approval by the City of Wildomar for industrial development projects subject to review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (i.e., nonexempt projects) that utilize equipment that has the potential to result in vibration, a vibration analysis shall be conducted to assess and mitigate potential vibration impacts. This vibration analysis shall be conducted by a qualified and experienced acoustical consultant or engineer and shall follow the latest CEQA guidelines, practices, and precedents.	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Acoustical Consultant	Prior to Discretionary Approval for Industrial Projects	City of Wildomar Community and Development Department and Building and Safety Department	

	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
	CULTURAL RESOURCES		<u> </u>		
TCR-1	<ul> <li>Inadvertent Archeological Find. If during ground disturbance activities, cultural resources are discovered that were not assessed by the archaeological report(s) and/or environmental assessment conducted prior to project approval, the following procedures shall be followed. Cultural resources are defined as being multiple artifacts in close association with each other, but also include fewer artifacts if the area of the find is determined to be of significance due to its sacred or cultural importance as determined in consultation with the lead agency and Native American Tribe(s) that elected to consult under AB 52 ("Consulting Tribe(s)").</li> <li>a. All ground disturbance activities within 100 feet of the discovered cultural resources shall be halted until a meeting is convened between the developer, the archaeologist, the tribal representative(s) and the Community Development Director to discuss the significance of the find.</li> <li>b. At the meeting, the significance of the discoveries shall be discussed and after consultation with the tribal representative(s), developer, and the archaeologist, a decision shall be made, with the concurrence of the Community Development Director, as to the appropriate mitigation (documentation, recovery, avoidance, etc.) for the cultural resources.</li> <li>c. Grading or further ground disturbance shall not resume within the area of the discovery until an agreement has been reached by all parties as to the appropriate mitigation. Work shall be allowed to continue outside of the buffer area and will be monitored by additional Tribal monitors if needed.</li> </ul>	Future Project Applicants and Professional Archaeologist	During Ground- Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	
	d. Treatment and avoidance of the newly discovered resources shall be consistent with the Treatment and Monitoring Agreements entered into with the Consulting Tribe(s) and the applicant. This may include avoidance of the cultural resources through project design, in-place preservation of cultural resources located in native soils and/or re-burial on the Project property so they are not subject to further disturbance in perpetuity as identified in Mitigation Measures TCR-2 and TCR-7.				
	e. If the find is determined to be significant and avoidance of the site has not been achieved, a Phase III data recovery plan (see Mitigation Measure TCR-6) shall be prepared by the project archeologist, in consultation with the Consulting Tribe(s), and shall be submitted to the City for their review and approval prior to implementation of the said plan.				

	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
	f. Pursuant to Calif. Pub. Res. Code § 21083.2(b) avoidance is the preferred method of preservation for archaeological resources and tribal cultural resources. If the landowner and the Consulting Tribe(s) cannot agree on the significance or the mitigation for the archaeological or tribal cultural resources, these issues will be presented to the Community Development Director for decision. The City's Community Development Director shall make the determination based on the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act with respect to archaeological and tribal cultural resources, recommendations of the project archeologist, and shall take into account the cultural and religious principles and practices of the Consulting Tribe(s). Notwithstanding any other rights available under the law, the decision of the City Community Development Director shall be appealable to the City Planning Commission and/or City Council.				
TCR-2	Cultural Resources Disposition. In the event that Native American cultural resources are discovered during the course of grading (inadvertent discoveries), the following procedures shall be carried out for final disposition of the discoveries:  a. One or more of the following treatments, in order of preference, as numbered	Future Project Applicants and Professional Archaeologist	During Grading Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	
	below, shall be employed with the Consulting Tribe(s). Evidence of such shall be provided to the City of Wildomar Community Development Department:				
	<ol> <li>Preservation-In-Place of the cultural resources, if feasible. Preservation in place means avoiding the resources, leaving them in the place where they were found with no development affecting the integrity of the resources.</li> </ol>				
	ii. Reburial of the resources on the Project property. The measures for reburial shall include, at least, the following: Measures and provisions to protect the future reburial area from any future impacts in perpetuity. Reburial shall not occur until all legally required cataloging and basic recordation have been completed, with an exception that sacred items, burial goods and Native American human remains are excluded. Any reburial process shall be culturally appropriate. Listing of contents and location of the reburial shall be included in the confidential Phase IV report (see Mitigation Measure TCR-6). The Phase IV Report shall be filed with				

		Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
		the City under a confidential cover and not subject to Public Records Request.				
	iii.	If preservation in place or reburial is not feasible then the resources shall be curated in a culturally appropriate manner at a Riverside County curation facility that meets State Resources Department Office of Historic Preservation Guidelines for the Curation of Archaeological Resources ensuring access and use pursuant to the Guidelines. The collection and associated records shall be transferred, including title, and are to be accompanied by payment of the fees by the Applicant necessary for permanent curation. Evidence of curation in the form of a letter from the curation facility stating that subject archaeological materials have been received and that all fees have been paid, shall be provided by the landowner to the City. There shall be no destructive or invasive testing on sacred items, burial goods, and Native American human remains, as defined by the cultural and religious practices of the Most Likely Descendant. Results concerning finds of any inadvertent discoveries shall be included in the Phase IV monitoring report.				
TCR-3	shall reta to monito archaeol The Reg Mitigatio initial gro including stockpilii Professiauthority allow ide coordina	plogist Retained. Prior to issuance of a grading permit the project applicant in a Riverside County qualified Registered Professional Archaeologist (RPA), or all ground disturbing activities in an effort to identify any unknown ogical resources.  istered Professional Archaeologist and the Tribal monitor(s) required by in Measures TCR-4 and TCR-5 shall manage and oversee monitoring for all bound disturbing activities and excavation of each portion of the project site in global disturbing activities and excavation of each portion of the project site in global grading, tree removals, mass or rough grading, trenching, and of materials, rock crushing, structure demolition and etc. The Registered in all Archaeologist and the Tribal monitor(s), shall independently have the interpretation of the project site of the properties of the project site of the project s	Future Project Applicants, Registered Professional Archaeologist, and the Tribal Monitor	Prior to Issuance of a Grading Permit	The City of Wildomar Community Development Department	
		eloper/permit holder shall submit a fully executed copy of the contract to the nity Development Department to ensure compliance with this condition of				

Mitigation Measure approval. Upon verification, the Community Development Department shall clear this	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
condition.				
In addition, the Registered Professional Archaeologist, in consultation with the Consulting Tribe(s), the contractor, and the City, shall develop a Cultural Resources Management Plan (CRMP) pursuant to the definition in AB 52 to address the details, timing and responsibility of all archaeological and cultural activities that will occur on the project site. A consulting tribe is defined as a tribe that initiated the AB 52 tribal consultation process for the Project, has not opted out of the AB 52 consultation process, and has completed AB 52 consultation with the City as provided for in Cal. Pub. Res. Code Section 21080.3.2(b)(1) of AB 52. Details in the Plan shall include:				
a. Project grading and development scheduling;				
b. The Project archaeologist and the Consulting Tribes(s) shall attend the pregrading meeting with the City, the construction manager and any contractors and will conduct a mandatory Cultural Resources Worker Sensitivity Training to those in attendance. The Training will include a brief review of the cultural sensitivity of the Project and the surrounding area; what resources could potentially be identified during earthmoving activities; the requirements of the monitoring program; the protocols that apply in the event inadvertent discoveries of cultural resources are identified, including who to contact and appropriate avoidance measures until the find(s) can be properly evaluated; and any other appropriate protocols. All new construction personnel that will conduct earthwork or grading activities that begin work on the Project following the initial Training must take the Cultural Sensitivity Training prior to beginning work and the Project archaeologist and Consulting Tribe(s) shall make themselves available to provide the training on an as-needed basis;				
c. The protocols and stipulations that the contractor, City, Consulting Tribe(s) and Project archaeologist will follow in the event of inadvertent cultural resources discoveries, including any newly discovered cultural resource deposits that shall be subject to a cultural resources evaluation.				

	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
TCR-4	Native American Monitoring (Pechanga). Tribal monitor(s) shall be required on-site during all ground-disturbing activities, including grading, stockpiling of materials, engineered fill, rock crushing, etc. The land divider/permit holder shall retain a qualified tribal monitor(s) from the Pechanga Band of Luiseno Indians. Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall submit a copy of a signed contract between the above-mentioned Tribe and the land divider/permit holder for the monitoring of the project to the Community Development Department and to the Engineering Department. The Tribal Monitor(s) shall have the authority to temporarily divert, redirect or halt the ground-disturbance activities to allow recovery of cultural resources, in coordination with the Project Archaeologist.	Future Project Applicants and Tribal Monitor	During Ground- Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department and Public Works and Engineering Department	
TCR-5	Native American Monitoring (Soboba). Tribal monitor(s) shall be required on-site during all ground-disturbing activities, including grading, stockpiling of materials, engineered fill, rock crushing, etc. The land divider/permit holder shall retain a qualified tribal monitor(s) from the Soboba Band of Luiseno Indians. Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the developer shall submit a copy of a signed contract between the above-mentioned Tribe and the land divider/permit holder for the monitoring of the project to the Community Development Department and to the Engineering Department. The Tribal Monitor(s) shall have the authority to temporarily divert, redirect or halt the ground-disturbance activities to allow recovery of cultural resources, in coordination with the Project Archaeologist.	Future Project Applicants and Tribal Monitor	During Ground- Disturbing Activities	City of Wildomar Community Development Department and Public Works and Engineering Department	
TCR-6	Archeology Report - Phase III and IV. Prior to final inspection, the developer/permit holder shall prompt the Project Archeologist to submit two (2) copies of the Phase III Data Recovery report (if required for the Project) and the Phase IV Cultural Resources Monitoring Report. The Phase IV report shall include evidence of the required cultural/historical sensitivity training for the construction staff held during the pre-grade meeting. The Community Development Department shall review the reports to determine adequate mitigation compliance. Provided the reports are adequate, the Community Development Department shall clear this condition. Once the report(s) are determined to be adequate, two (2) copies shall be submitted to the Eastern Information Center (EIC) at the University of California Riverside (UCR) and one (1) copy shall be submitted to the Consulting Tribe(s) Cultural Resources Department(s).	Future Project Applicants and Qualified Archaeologist	Prior to Final Inspection	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	

Table 3-1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements

	Mitigation Measure	Responsibility for Implementation	Timing	Responsibility for Monitoring	Monitor (Signature Required) (Date of Compliance)
TCR-7	Non-Disclosure of Reburial Locations. It is understood by all parties that unless otherwise required by law, the site of any reburial of Native American human remains or associated grave goods shall not be disclosed and shall not be governed by public disclosure requirements of the California Public Records Act. The Coroner, pursuant to the specific exemption set forth in California Government Code Section 6254 (r)., parties, and Lead Agencies, will be asked to withhold public disclosure information related to such reburial.	Future Project Applicants and Professional Archaeologist	During Discovery of Native American Human Remains	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	
TCR-8	No-Build Easement or Similar Instrument. In the event that Native American artifacts are found and buried within the project vicinity, a no-build easement, or similar legal instrument, shall be used to preclude future development from taking place on the reburial site(s).	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	Before Reburial of Native American Artifacts	City of Wildomar Community Development Department	
WILDFIR	E				

See Mitigation Measures HAZ-1 and HAZ-2.

This page intentionally left blank.

## 4. Mitigation Monitoring Reports

Mitigation monitoring reports are required to document compliance with the Mitigation Monitoring Program and to resolve disputes. Specific reports include:

- Field Check Report
- Implementation Compliance Report
- Dispute/Enforcement Report

#### 4.1 FIELD CHECK REPORT

Field check reports are required to record in-field compliance and conditions.

#### 4.2 IMPLEMENTATION COMPLIANCE REPORT

The Implementation Compliance Report (ICR) is prepared to document the implementation of mitigation measures on a phased basis, based on the information in Table 3-1. The report summarizes implementation compliance, including mitigation measures, date completed, and monitor's signature.

#### 4.3 DISPUTE/ENFORCEMENT REPORT

The Dispute/Enforcement Report (DER) is prepared to document the outcome of the Project Manager or City Manager and becomes a portion of the ICR.

### 4. Mitigation Monitoring Reports

This page intentionally left blank.

# 5. Community Involvement

Monitoring reports are public documents and are available for review by the general public. Discrepancies in monitoring reports can be taken to the Project Manager or Community Development Director by the general public.

### 5. Community Involvement

This page intentionally left blank.

# 6. Report Preparation

#### 6.1 LIST OF PREPARERS

#### City of Wildomar

Matthew C. Bassi, Community Development Director

#### **PlaceWorks**

Mark Teague, AICP, Managing Principal

Jasmine Osman, Associate II

Joseph Ruiz, Planner

### 6. Report Preparation

This page intentionally left blank.